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ASA Building 1889
318-320 West Baltimore Street
Private

The ASA Building is significant for its eclectic brownstone and terra
cotta decoration featuring masks, animals, solar disks and intertwining
organic forms. It is one of the most highly decorated commercial facades
in the city. Built by Arunah S. Abell as an investment in 1889, it is
one of two remaining large Abell buildings, the other being at 329-355
West Baltimore Street (B-2364).



Survey No. B-2347

o . Magi No. (0423475611
Maryland Historical Trust ’

State Historic Sites Inventory Form DOE _yes ymo

y I Name (indicate preferred name)

historic ASA Building

and/or common Lombardy Knitwear Co.

2. Location

street & number 318-320 West Baltimore Street ___not for publiéa‘ion
city, town Baltimore ___vicinity of congressional district 3rd
state Maryland county
L] ] -
3. Classification
Category Ownership Status Present Use
—_district - public —X occupied ____ agriculture — museum
% _building(s) _X_private —__unoccupied _X__commercial —park
___ structure _ both ____ work in progress — educational —_ private residence
____ site Public Acquisition Accessible ____ entertainment — religious
__object —_in process _x_yes: restricted ____government —— scientific
—_being considered ____ yes: unrestricted ___industrial —__ transportation
x not applicable no ___ military —__other:

4. Owner of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

name Bern-Shaw Ltd. Partnership
street & number 400 W. Pennsylvania Avenue telephone no.:
city, town Baltimore state and zip code Maryland 21204

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. ~ Baltimore City Courthouse liber SEB 38
street & number West Fayette and North Calvert Streets folio 235
city, town Saltimore state  Maryland

6. Representation in Existing #mistorical surveys

title Baltimcre Retail District Survey

date 1980 X __federal ____state ___ county _X local

_epository for survey records Commission for Historical and Architectural Preservation

city, town Baltimore state Maryland 21201




7. Description Survey No. B-2347

Condition Check one Check one

—__ excellent __ deteriorated ____ unaltered _x_ original site

___good ___ruins __X altered —__moved date of move
X _fair —_ unexposed

Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its
various elements as it exists today.

SUMMARY :

The ASA Building is a six story brick, stone and terra cotta commercial
building erected in 1889 on the north side of West Baltimore Street about
halfway between Howard and Eutaw Streets in central Baltimore, Maryland.

The facade is an eclectic design featuring a central oriel bay extending from
the second to the fifth stories and elaborately carved molding and trim in the
intertwining style popularized by Louis Sullivan. The decoration also includes
masks, sun disks, a date panel, a dog and cat, a monogrammed pediment, and
pressed metal panels. The street level storefront of the building was altered
in the mid 20th century and has a plain brick covering with modern entrance
doors on both sides of the facade and small rectangular windows. The building
is currently occupied by several wholesale clothing and accessory firms.

GENERAL DESCRIPTION:

The ASA Building is six stories in height with a brick structure and a sloping
flat roof. Formerly flanked on both the east and west by commercial structures,
its east side is now exposed by the demolition of the adjoining structure for
parking space. The storefront of the building has been drastically altered and
is covered by a plain brick wall pierced by three functionally designed doors
and three small rectangular windows. Above the brick facade is a rivetted
metal fascia, the only visible part of the original storefront.

The second through the fifth stories of the ASA facade are dominated by a
central oriel-bay with three sides.  The oriel's lower surface at the level

of the storefront fascia is also covered in rivetted metal. The spandrels
between the windows of the oriel are covered with pressed metal in decorative
patterns. At the fourth story, the spandrel is in an all-over organic foliated
pattern similar to those popularized by Louis Sullivan. In the center of the
bay is a date panel, "1889". The windows in the bay are 1/1 with large plain
transoms. The oriel terminates at the fifth story where the central bay has

a large arched window the width of the oriel. The arch contains a deeply
recessed three-part window of 1/1 sash and plain transoms. The arch itself is
ornamented by terra cotta in an intertwining design of leaves, vines and grapes.
Sun disk masks form the spring stones of the arch.

The two narrow outer bays of the facade are framed in brick with brownstone
rusticated belt courses at the sill and transom bar levels of each story.

At the third story, the brick piers flanking the 1/1 windows become decorative,
with angled sawtooth edges rising from weathered brownstone spring stones.

The spandrels are decorated by relief patterned brick and carved brownstone
panels. At the spandrel between the fourth and fifth stories, the brownstone
bands are heavily carved with masks and foliated designs. The piers terminate
in brownstone capitals in an eclectic order. Above the windows at this level
are terra cotta figures of a crouching dog and cat. The dog's head is missing.
The fifth story windows of the other bays are round-arched with traceried
muntins in the upper part of the 1/1 sash. The arches are emphasized by
narrow bands of rusticated brownstone.



8- Significance Survey No. B-2347

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below
— prehistoric ____ archeology-prehistoric ____ community planning ____ landscape architecture____ religion
—1400-1499 ____ archeology-historic —___conservation — law — science
-1500-1599 ____ agriculture —___economics ____literature — sculpture
—1600-1699 _Xx  architecture — education — military — social/
—1700-1799 ___ art —_ engineering — music humanitarian
_ X 1800-1899 ____ commerce ___ exploration/settlement ____ philosophy — theater
—_ 1900~ ____communications ___ industry —_ politics/government ____ transportation
____invention —_ other (specify)
Specific dates 1889 Builder/Architect
check: Applicable Criteria: _ A B XC D
and/or
Applicable Exception: _ A B ~C D _E _F _ G
Level of Significance: _ national __ state X local

Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a general statement of history and
support.
SUMMARY :

The ASA Building is significant for its eclectic brownstone and terra cotta
decoration featuring masks, animals, solar dicsks, and intertwining organic forus.
It is one of the most highly decorated commercial facades in the city. Built

by Arunah S. Abell as an investment in 1889, it is one of two remaining

large aAbell buildings, the other being at 329-355 West Baltimore Street (B-2364).

History and Support:

The building which previously stood at 318-320 West Baltimore Street was a four-
story, two-bay brick commercial structure. It had three part window groups in
each upper story bay with pediments and hoods on the central window in each bay
of the second and third stories. This building was demclished in. 1888-89 for
the construction of the ASA Building.

The ASA Building's original storefront had a central window and was flanked by
separate entrances for the street level shop and the upper stories. The original
tenants are unknown, but in 1892, most of the building was rented for additional
space by the William Koch Importing Co., 322 West Baltimore, a toy importer and
wholesaler. This firm stayed until 1895. From 1915 to the present, a variety of
companies generally involved in wholesale and retail clothing manufacture and sales
have occupied the building.



9. Major Bibliographical References Survey No. B-2347

Baltimore City Directories
Engelhardt, George W., Baltimore: The Book of Its Board of Trade, c. 1895.

Peale Museum, Photo collection.

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of nominated property

Quadrangle name __Baltimore East Quadrangle scale _1:24000
UTM References 4o NOT complete UTM references R
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Verbal boundary description and justification

(T I

co-terminous with lot 33 ft. x 155% ft.

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries

state code county : code

state code county code
11. Form Prepared By

Janet L. Davis, Historical Preservation Analyst

name/title

organiza“m,Fomcm. for Hist. & Arch. Pres. (CHAP) date April, 1986
street & number 606 Tower Suites, 118 N. Howard St. telephone ‘(351] 356—4866
city or town Baltimore siate Marvlax;d éléo 1

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created by
an Act of the Maryland Legislature to be found in the Annotated
Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and
record purposes only and do not constitute any infringement of
individual property rights.

return to: Maryland Historical Trust
Shaw House
21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 269-2438

PS-2746



7. Description, cont'd. B~-2347
Page 2

The sixth story of the ASA Building breaks the pattern of the lower stories
with a band of six deeply recessed 1/1 windows set in an exterior of ashlar
brownstone. The windows are flanked by plain columns with alternating

basket and flared capitals. Below the window sills is a band of brownstone
masks. The building facade ends in a simple parapet with a central semi-
circular element carved with intertwining foliation, masks, and the interlaced
initials "ASA".

On the exposed east elevation of the building is the vague ghost of painted
wall signs superimposed one above the other. The only clear wording reads
"Piccadilly Shirt Co.”" The gable roof ocutline of the the demolished adjoining
building is also visible on the wall. On the roof of the ASA Building is the
support frame of a water tower, which was recently removed.
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Baltimore: The Book of Its Board of Trade, c. 1895

Rogge & Koch, Importers and Jobbers of Toys and Fancy
Goods, West Baltimore Street.

and varieties of tovs amd faney gowds, the greater pari of which
are imported  direct from Eovopean mannfacturers, thongh
dumestic wares are also largely handled. The sales ot the
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president,  amd  CTHHOMAS X,
COOTER, secrewnry. M.
HARRY S FOCKE, who has Teen
contveted with the house Siom
the Youndation of the hasiness.amd wlio s well known thinonseh-
out the country as one of the very best salesmen in this lwe of
tracte, and Meo Peter W Deadley, arve also members of the
company. ‘This company does bhusiness evervwhure in this
conntry except on the Pacitic slope and do ihe extreme ~onch
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Baltimore Metrocenter Survey
Market Center

ASA Building '
318-320 West Baltimore Street
B-2347






ASA Building B-2347
318-320 West Baltimore Street
Market Center - Metrocenter Survey
Baltimore (City), Maryland

Photo: Janet Davis

ilarch 1986

Neg. loc. Maryland Historical Trust
General view from southeast
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ASA Building B-2347
318-320 West Baltimore Street
Market Center - Metrocenter Survey
Baltimore (City), Maryland

Photo: Janet Davis

March 1986

Neg. loc.: Maryland Historical Trust

Dﬁtail, pediment with monogram
245






ASA Building B-2347
318-320 West Baltimore Street
Market Center - Metrocenter Survey
Baltimore (City), ilaryland

Photo: Janet Davis

March 1986

Neg. loc.: Maryland Historical Trust
Detail, date panel
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ASA Building B-2347

318-320 West Baltimore Street

Market Center - Metrocenter Survey

Baltimore (City), Maryland

Photo: Janet Davis

March 1986

Neg. loc.: Maryland Historical Trust

Detail, terra cotta decoration with
cat
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ASA Building B-2347

318-320 West Baltimore Street

Market Center - Metrocenter Survey

Baltimore (City), Maryland

Photo: Janet Davis

March 1986

Neg. loc.: Maryland Historical Trust

Detail, terra cotta decoration with
dog
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MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST
MAG HOY 23y 15|32
INVENTORY FORM FOR STATE HISTORIC SITES SURVEY
TINAME
HISTORIC
AND/OR COMMON ) ; _ ) :
Lombardy Knitwear
BJLOCATION
STREET & NUMBER 3_18-320 We Ba.ltirgore Street ,
CITY, TOWN. : : “CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT
: Baltimore — VICINITY OF '
STATE . . o couwrv‘
——— Maryland '
EJ CLASSIFICATION
CATEGORY OWNERSHIP . JSTATUS PRESENT USE
f:smlm’ i UBLIC ; Joccumsn GRICULTURE —MUSEUM
BUILDINGI(S) iﬂl\hﬂi —UNOCCUPIED ~ 'iouniencm' " 1_PARK
__STRUCTURE __BOTH —WORK IN PROGRESS __EDUCATIONAL  __PRIVATE RESIDENCE
—SITE PUBLIC AGOUISITION CCESSIBLE __ENTERTAINMENT " 2_RELIGIOUS
~_OBJECT __IN PROCESS YES: RESTRICTED —GOVERNMENT __SCIENTIFIC
__BEING CONSIDERED —_YES: UNRESTRICTED —INDUSTRIAL __TRANSPORTATION
—NO —MILITARY —OTHER.,
TN OWNER OF PROPERTY
NAME ) ’ ; :
Telephone #:
STREET & NUMBER ;
IV TOWN = 7= SIATE, zip code
: ‘ —_"VICINITY OF - L -
EILOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION | ———y
COURTHOUSE.

REGISTRY OF DEEDS;ETC.

Records Office - Room 601

Folio #:

STREET & NUMBER

Baltimore City Courthouse

CITY, TOWN
Baltimore

. .STATE

ﬁiEPRESENTATmN IN EXISTING SURVEYS

Maryland 21202

.

TITLE
Cit.y of B_altimore Neighborhood Survey
DATE . -
' 1976 _FEDERAL _STATE __COUNTY X10CAL
DEPOSITORY FOR

SURVEY RECORDS GOMMISSION FOR HISTORICAL &

CITY. TOWN
Ro;)m 900

ESERVATION

STATE 3

26 South Calvert St.

Baltimore,-Md. 21202



8-2347

DESCRIPTION
CONDITION CHECK ONE jHECK ONE :)
CELLENT —DETERIORATED NALTERED ORIGINAL SITE
GOOD —RUINS ﬁLTERED —MOVED DATE
—FAIR —UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

This six story high, three hay wide loft building is built of brick, stone and
terra cotta. A central three story high oriel window rising from the second
through fourth floors, with roundarched window above is the most dominant fea-
ture of this eclectic, Commercial-Sullivanesgue-Richardsonian building,

The first flocr of the structure has been sheathed with brick. Three entrances
have been let into the front, and small rectdngular plate glass windows fill the
wall in between, On the eastern side, where the former structures have been
demolished, the exposed corner reveals ¥hat the first floor originally was of
Rough-Hewn brownstone ashlar., A massive riveted metal lintel spans the front
above the first floor. The underside of the oriel swells onto the lintel, A
minor metal cornice runs above this and traces of brownstone terminal blocks
remain at the ends.

Flanking the central oriel on either side are columns of double hung windows

with 1/1 lights., All have stone sills and lintels with transoms above, also set in
lintels, Double brick pilasters begin as stone knobs at the level of the second

floor transoms, and rise on either side of the windows. Pilasters are triangular 3
in plan. Courses of stone at sills and lintles continue as brocken belts. Above

the second floor windows”¥#®panels of molded brick saw-toothing, Third floor win-

dows are identical with panels of brick outlined with rosettes and leafy moldings

above,

The fourth floor windows are again similarly detailed. Above them a mino r cornice
skirts the facade, breaking at the oriel; and is supported by the capitals of the
pilasters, The capitals are in a stylized Ionic mcde, Carved dogs are set in the .
lintels above the side windows, and the freize is carved with masks and vines,

The windows of the fifth floor are round-arched and double hung with 1/1 lights,
Molded brick arches emphasige that they are deeply recessed, The upper sash
consists of a circle of glass set in wood within the roundheaded member. Strings
of stone surrounds the arches,

The sixth floor is constructed of rough-hewn brownstone ashlar, set above a freize
of carved masks, Stone colonnettes with Komanesque capitals define six flat arched,
deeply recessed, double hung windows with 1/1 lights, Stone sills are carved with
pateral® and massive lintels run from capital to capital. A simple cornice runs above,
and a stone parapet with central semicircular member is carved with Sullivanesque
ornament, Carved masks are at its corners, and a central plaque is carved with a
stylisized monogram of "ASA", indicating that perhaps A.S. Abell, the publisher and
real estate magnate may have been responsible for the building.

The central oriel has three sides; the front is the widest. At the sides on the pﬁ)
second floor, are double hung windows with 1/1 lights ﬁhd transoms. Pressed me-

-

tal arabesque patterned panels are above. iﬂﬁﬁtﬁ*;;:ﬂ%:;:y? B

( Continue of page eight.) At bottom.
CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY



SIGNIFICANCE
PERIOD

—PREHISTORIC —ARCHEOLUGY-PREHISTORIC
—1400-1499 —ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC
—1500-1599 GRICULTURE
—1800-1699 RCHITECTURE
—1700-1799 —ART
X 1800-1899 —COMMERCE
—1900- —COMMUNICATIONS

—COMMUNITY PLANNING
—_CONSERVATION
—ECONOMICS

—EDUCATION
—ENGINEERING
—EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT
—INDUSTRY

—INVENTION

AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW

—LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE
—LAW

—LITERATURE

—MILITARY

—MusIC

—PHILOSOPHY
—POLITICS/GOVERNMENT

6-3347

—RELIGION

—SCIENCE

—SCULPTURE
—SOCIAL/HUMANITARIAN
—THEATER
—TRANSPORTATION
—_OTHER (SPECIFY)

-

SPECIFIC DATES

/787

BUILDER/ARCHITECT

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

One of the most eclectic and pleasing designs for a bus

.ing in the area,
and an elaborate array of terra cotta ornament,

proportions.

replete with Chicago Windows, touches

iness build-~
of Sullivan,
all 'set within fine

Third floor windows are the same with leafy pressed metal patterns in the

panels above,
tilled molding.

Fourth floor windows are surmounted by two rows of den- .
The front of the oriel is detailed similarly, except

second floor windows are bipartite triple hung windows with 1/1/1/ lights

and transom,
with transom.

has the date 1889 in pressed relief,

Third and fourth floor windows are pivoting plate glass
The pressed metal panel between third and fourth floors

At the fifth floor, wherq_tﬁe oriel ends, is a tripartite round arched.
window, filled with double hung windows with 1/1 lights with transom a-

bove.

It is deeply recessed and spans the width of the oriel.

It is

outlined with a surround of egg and dart terra cotta moldings, and relief
of leaves, vines and grapes, At the spring points of the archy terra
cotta sunbursts with cast visages are set.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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_EMA]OR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES \.‘)

COQTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
IGEOGRAPHICAL DATA

ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

, LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVEFILAPPFNG STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

. STJ\TLE ; . COUNTY ) i . -
STATE _ COUNTY =
[S1FORM PREPARED BY
NAME / TITLE Pl i Assistants
ORGANIZATION ’ DATE
STREET & NUMBER R ITECTURAL PRESERVA.T;ION? . . TELEPHONE
GITY OR TOWN ngslouth Calvert 8 - — T s;'rA‘r{
—Baltimere—d—21ou—— -

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory°qu officially created
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the -
Annotated Code of Maryland, Artlcle 41, Section 181 Ka,

1974 Supplement.

The Survey and InQentory are being prépared for information
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe-
ment of individual property rights. )

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust
The Shaw House, 21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 267-1438
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